

961168749

## SENATE BILL NO. 601

Senate Amendments in [ ] — February 13, 1996

*A BILL to amend and reenact §§ 18.2-51.1 and 18.2-57.1 of the Code of Virginia, relating to bodily injury; assault and battery; penalty.*

Patrons—Waddell, Goode, Hanger, Holland, Lucas, Miller, K.G., Miller, Y.B., Newman, Quayle, Trumbo and Williams; Delegates: Barlow, Cooper, Drake, Fisher, Keating, McEachin and Plum

Consent to introduce

Referred to the Committee for Courts of Justice

**Be it enacted by the General Assembly of Virginia:****1. That §§ 18.2-51.1 and 18.2-57.1 of the Code of Virginia are amended and reenacted as follows:**

§ 18.2-51.1. Malicious bodily injury to law-enforcement officers certain emergency and rescue personnel; penalty; lesser included offense.

If any person maliciously causes bodily injury to another by any means including the means set out in § 18.2-52, with intent to maim, disfigure, disable or kill, and knowing or having reason to know that such other person is a law-enforcement officer, as defined hereinafter, *or an employee or volunteer of any governmental, private or volunteer firefighting organization, rescue squad or emergency medical services organization*, engaged in the performance of his ~~public~~ [ public ] duties as a ~~law-enforcement officer~~ [ *such an officer, employee or volunteer* a law enforcement officer *or while such employee or volunteer is engaged in providing firefighting, rescue or emergency medical services* ], such person shall be guilty of a Class 3 felony, and, upon conviction, the sentence of such person shall include a mandatory, minimum term of imprisonment of two years.

If any person unlawfully, but not maliciously, with the intent aforesaid, causes bodily injury to another by any means, knowing or having reason to know such other person is a law-enforcement officer, as defined hereinafter, *or an employee or volunteer of any governmental, private or volunteer firefighting organization, rescue squad or emergency medical services organization*, engaged in the performance of his ~~public~~ duties as a ~~law-enforcement officer~~ *such an officer, employee or volunteer*, he shall be guilty of a Class 6 felony, and upon conviction, the sentence of such person shall include a mandatory, minimum term of imprisonment of one year.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to affect the right of any person charged with a violation of this section from asserting and presenting evidence in support of any defenses to the charge that may be available under common law.

As used in this section the term "mandatory, minimum" means that the sentence it describes shall be served with no suspension of sentence in whole or in part.

As used in this section a law-enforcement officer means any full-time or part-time employee of a police department or sheriff's office which is part of or administered by the Commonwealth or any political subdivision thereof, and who is responsible for the prevention or detection of crime and the enforcement of the penal, traffic or highway laws of this Commonwealth, any conservation officer of the Department of Conservation and Recreation commissioned pursuant to § 10.1-115, and includes auxiliary police officers appointed or provided for pursuant to §§ 15.1-159.2 and 15.1-159.4 and auxiliary deputy sheriffs appointed pursuant to § 15.1-48.

The provisions of § 18.2-51 shall be deemed to provide a lesser included offense hereof.

§ 18.2-57.1. Assault and battery against law-enforcement officers; penalty; lesser included offenses.

If any person commits an assault or an assault and battery against another by the shooting of any pistol, shotgun, rifle or other firearm, knowing or having reason to know that such other person is a law-enforcement officer, as defined hereinafter, *or any employee or volunteer of any governmental, private or volunteer firefighting organization, rescue squad or emergency medical services organization*, engaged in the performance of his ~~public~~ [ public ] duties as a ~~law-enforcement officer~~ [ *such an officer, employee or volunteer* a law enforcement officer *or while such employee or volunteer is engaged in providing firefighting, rescue or emergency medical services* ], such person shall be guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor and, upon conviction, the sentence of such person shall include a mandatory, minimum term of confinement in jail for six months.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to affect the right of any person charged with a violation of this section from asserting and presenting evidence in support of any defenses to the charge that may be available under common law.

As used in this section the term "mandatory, minimum" means that the sentence it describes shall be

ENGROSSED

SB601E

60 served with no suspension of sentence in whole or in part, and no probation being given by the court.

61 As used in this section a law-enforcement officer means any full-time or part-time employee of a  
62 police department or sheriff's office which is part of or administered by the Commonwealth or any  
63 political subdivision thereof, and who is responsible for the prevention or detection of crime and the  
64 enforcement of the penal, traffic or highway laws of this Commonwealth, any conservation officer of the  
65 Department of Conservation and Recreation commissioned pursuant to § 10.1-115, and includes auxiliary  
66 police officers appointed or provided for pursuant to §§ 15.1-159.2 and 15.1-159.4 and auxiliary deputy  
67 sheriffs appointed pursuant to § 15.1-48.

68 Assault and assault and battery shall be deemed to be lesser included offenses hereof.

69 **2. That the provisions of this act may result in a net increase in periods of imprisonment in state**  
70 **correctional facilities. Pursuant to § 30-19.1:4, the estimated amount of the necessary appropriation**  
71 **is [ \$0 in FY 2006. ]**